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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Reverie Language Technologies Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Reverie Language
Technologies Limited {the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and toss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended an
that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting pelicies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the "Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view In conformity
with the [Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind
AS”y and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss, total comprehensive (oss, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAIL") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us Is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

» The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

» Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

= In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the cther information 1s
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears toc be maternally misstated.
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s If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statement

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that dive a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company In accordance
with the accounting principies generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate interpal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the rnsks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perferm audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for
our opinicn. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resuiting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from errcr, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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= QObtain an understanding of internal financial centrols relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our gpinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease te continue as a going concern,

= FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowladgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {i} planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial contrels that we (dentify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and cobtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
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b)

a)

h}

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for not
keeping backup on a daily basis of such books of account maintained in electronic
mode in a server physically located in India throughout the year (refer Note 34{b)
to the financial statements) and not complying with the requirement of audit trail
as stated in (i)(vi) below.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

In our opinion, the aferesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Secticn 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disquaiified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act

The medifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmoedified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In
accordance with the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, In
our opinion and to the best of our information and acgording to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the
explanations given to us:

I.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position,

W The Company did not have any long-term contracts ncluding dervative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses

i, There were ne amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company
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v,

V.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in note 32(ii) to the financial statements
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in note 32(ii) to the financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bepeficiaries.

{¢} Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reascnable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Ruie 11{e), as provided under {a} and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and
has not proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company, has
used accounting software’s for maintaining its books of account for the year
ended March 31, 2025 which have a feature of recording audit trail {edit
leg) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that, in respect of an
accounting software, the audit trail feature was not enabled for the period
from April 01, 2024 to April 30, 2024. The Company upgraded its software
on May 01, 2024 to a new version which has the audit trail feature and the
same has operated from May 01, 2024 throughout the remaining period
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of the
accounting software for the period for which the audit trall feature was
operating. As audit traii feature was not enabied throughout the year ended
March 31, 2024 in respect of an accounting software and for the period
from January 01, 2024 to March 31, 2024 for another software, reporting
under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention 1s not applicable.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”} issued by
the Central Government in terms of Secticn 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Qrder,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Mo, 1173p6W/W 100018

QW4 Mﬁf

Shree\'}fmr Ghanekar
Partner

Membership No. 210840
UDIN: 25210840BMMJIH3101

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 22, 2025
SMG/BS/2025
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1{g) under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Reverie Language Technologies Limited (“the Company”™) as at March 31, 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal contral with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial cantrols that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur respensibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note con Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects
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Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of materia! misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purpases in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, materiai misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
In conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 11[7366W,’W 100018

Shrekedhar Ghanekar
. Partner
Membership No. 210840
UDIN: 25210840BMMIIH3101
Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 22, 2025
SMG/BS/2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(iy(a) (A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(i)(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the
year by the Management which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification at reasonable intervals. According to the Information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{i(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence
reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

{(0(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets during the year.

{iXe) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988
and Rules made hereunder.

(in(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under
clause 3(ii){a) of the Qrder is not applicable.

(1){b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point
of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working
capital facility from banks cor financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii){b) of the Order
is not applicable.
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(1

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

(vii)(b)

{viii)

(x)(a)

(ix)(b)

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee
or security, and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause 3
(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided
guarantees or securities and hence reporting under clause 3 (iv) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amcunts which are
deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause {v) of the Order is
not applicabie.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities
of the Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and services tax, provident
fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the
Company have generally been regularly deposited by it with the
appropriate authorities We have been informed that the provisions of the
Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 are not applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
services tax, provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable

There are no statutery dues referred in sub-clause {a) above which have
not been deposited on account of disputes as on March 31, 2025,

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1961} during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during
the year,

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority
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(ix)(c)

(ix}(d)

(ix)(e)

(x)(F}

(x)}{a)

(x)(b)

(xi)(a)

(xi){b)

(xi)(c)

{xii)

(x1ii)

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans
availed by the Company were, applied by the Company during the year
for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company,
the funds raised on short-term basis aggregating Rs. 803,00 Lakhs have
been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture
dunng the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries or joint wventures or associate
companies.

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential atlotment
or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fuily or partly
or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section {12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause
3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188
of the Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the
related parties and the details of related party transacticns have been
disclosed n the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards.
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(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)(a)
(b), (0)

(xvi)(d)

{xvii)

{xwviii)

{xix}

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
provided to us, internal audit system under section 138 of the Companies
Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under
clauses 3(xiv)(a) and (xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, during the year, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicabie to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi){a), (b) and {c) of the Order is not applicable.

As represented by the management, the Group has more than one Care
Investment Company (CIC} as part of the Group as per the definition of
Group contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016. There are 2 CICs forming part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year
covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company
during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year fram
the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this 15 not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or
more, o turmover of nipees ane thousand crore or more or 4 net profit
of rupees five crore or maore during the immediately preceding financial
year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 117366W/W 100018

Oil,«e}ww’/

Shreedhar Ghanekar

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No. 210840
Date: April 22, 2025 UDIN: 25210840BMMIIH3101

SMG/BS/2025
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Reverle Language Technologles Limited

CIN: U74900GJ2008PLC157721

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated

Particulars Notes As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

ASSETS
Nan-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipmenl 3 49 54 6542
intangible Assels k] 025
Intangible Assels Under Development < 17,849 64 14,082 94
Financial Assels

Other Financial Assels 4 17 53 1591
Other Non Currenl Assels 5 54 37 azy
Total Non-Current Assets (1) 17.871.08 14,197.79
Current Assets
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables ] 154 17 513

Cash and Cash equivalenls 7 38 65 140 47

Other Financial Assels B 192 19 121 70
Olher Current Assets 9 220 57 268 27
Total Current Assels {Il) 605.58 579.75
Total Assets ([+) 18,576.668 14,777.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 10 213 213
Olher Equity 1 10,276 81 10,380 69
Total Egquity (111 10,278,94 10.3§2.82
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 12 24569 184 00
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 13 326500
Total Non-Current Liabillties {1V} 3,510.69 184.00
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 13 4,070 00 3,267 00

Trade Payables 14

-Total Qutstanding dues of Micre and Smali Enterprises 508 1390
-Tolal Quisianding dues of oiher than Micro and Smail Enterprises 291 89 577 48

Other Financtal Liabilities 143 280 53 222 00
Other Current Liabilles 15 10871 106 29
Provisions 12 30.82 24 05
Total Current Liablities {V} 4,787.03 4,210.72
Total Equity and Liabilities {Il+IV+V) 18,576.66 14,777.54

See Accompanying Notea (1-37) forming part of these Financlal Statemenls.

) .'.,-.|1
é?: b 2.
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In terms of our Report attached

For Deloitte Haskina & Sells LLP
[ d Accountanis

giraticn No. 117366W/W-100018

For and on behalf of the Board

A (-

Arvind Pani
Director

DIN: 00936914

Director

DIN: 01012763

Qi

Anish Keshavlal Shal
Director

DIN: 07205243

Hirmi Mathi
Direcior

DN pazezT4s -
) W

o

Rajonhicumar

s

Director
DIN: 10370887



Reverie Language Technelogies Limited

CIN: U74900GJ2009PLC157T21

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars Notes 31st March 2025 3st March 2024
Revenue From Operations (1) 16 1,545 78 1,382 60
Other income (I} 17 10 30 30 47
Total Income (1) - {1411} 1.556.08 1,423 07
Expenses

Employee Benefits Expense {IV) 18 466 07 448 41
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense V) 3 1122 1592
Finance costs (V1) 18 106 08 44 84
Other Expenses (VI 20 1,050 91 834 53
Total Expeases (VIII} - (IV+V+VI+VII} 1.634 28 1.343.70
Profit f{Loss) before tax {1X) - (11-VIII} {78 20) 79.37
Tax Expense {X) 0.95 -
Current lax 026

Tax expense pertaining to earlier years 068

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (X1} - {IX-X} 79.151 79.37
Other Comprahensive Income

Items that will not to be reclassified profit/{loss)

Remeasurements of the Net Defined Benefit Liabilily f Asset {24 73) {18 99)
Other Comprehensive Income / {Loss) tor the year (Xil} (24731 {18.99)
Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (X111 - (X1+XI) {103.88) 60.38
Earnings Per Share (Nominal Value of 10 each)
|Basic and Diluled {in Rs } 24 {370 24} 371 27

See Accompanying Notes (1-37) forming parl of these Financial Statements.
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Reverie Language Technologies Limited

CiN: U74900GJ2009PLC157721

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

A Equity Share Capital

Change during the year

Balance as at 1st April, 2023 2023-24

Balance as at 31st
March 2024

Change during the
year 2024-25

Balance as at
31st March, 2025

213

213

213

B. Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Total
Particulars Securities Premium Deficit in Statement Other Equity
Reserve of Profit and Loss
Balance As at 1st Apr 2023 17.240.69 {6,920.38) 10,320.31
Additions During the Year .
Profit for the Year 7937 7937
Other Comprehensive Incocme . {18 99; {18 9%
Balance As at 1st Apr 2024 17,240.69 (G.BE(.'!.(.'I()IIr 10,3B80.69
Additions During the Year
Loss for the Year (79 15) (79 15)
Other Comprehensive Loss - (24 73 (24 73)
Balance As at 31st March 2025 17.240.69 {6,963.88) 10,276.81
See Accompanying Notes (1-37) forming part of these Financial Statements
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Reverie Language Technalagles Limited

CIN: U74800GJ2009PLC157721

Cash Flovs Statemeni for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounis are in P Lakhs, unlesa otharwlse stated

Partlculars

Year Ended
31st March 2025

Year Ended
J1st March 2024

A. Cash Flow from Operating Actlvitles

Nel Profit/{Loss) Before Tax as per Slatement of Profit and Loss (78 20) 7837

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and Amorlisalion Expense 1122 1582

Prowvisian for Expecled Credil Losses on Trads Receivables 62 60 152 30

{ProfityLoss on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment 1044 -

Net Gain on Sale / Fair Valuation of Financial Assels Measured al FVTPL {0 09)

Finance Cost 106 08 44 84

Interesl Income on Fixed Deposils 0.34]

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 112 05 292 03

Movemants In Werking Capital

Trade Receivables (115 63) 1918

Other Current Assets 45.70 4B 96

Other Non Currenl Assets 304 (930

Other Finencial Assels {121.94) {116 B2}

Trade Payables {294 43) 181 76

Dther Financial Liabilities 3247 200 25

Other Current Llabilities 242 (67 92)

Provisigns 43 73 377

Cash {used In) /generated from Operatlons {292 59) 585 92

income Tax (Paid) (25 08) 300 69

Net Cash Flow (used In) from Operating Activitios (A (M7 87} 886 61

B Cash Flow From Investing Activitles

Intangible Assels Under Development {3,414 BOY {3,044 §9)

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {35 37) (72 08)

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plani and Equipment 018

Invesiment i Fixed Deposits {201 00)

Redemption of Fixed Deposils 20100

Investment in Mutual Funds {179 89)

Redemption of Mutual Funds 180.08

Interest Received on Fixed Deposis - 03]

Net Cash Flow Used In Investing Activitfes B} 13,448,901 13,116.43

C, Cash Flow from Financing Actlvities

Proceeds from shor term Borowings 4,350 00 3,287 00

Proceeds from long term Borrowings 3,28500

Repaymenl of Borrowings {3,547 00) {750 00)

Pavmenl of Interest {402 251 {173 15)

Mot Cash Flow from Financing Actlvitles (Cl 3,665 75 2,263.85

Net Increasef{Decrease] In Cash and Cash Equivalents { A+ B + C ) {101 82) 134 02

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the Beginning of Lhe Year 140 47 & 4d

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year [Notae 7) 34 65 14047

Ses Accompaitying Notes (1-37) forming part of these Financial Statemonts

Reconcillation ot liabllities from Einancing activitles for the year ended March i1, 2025

As at As at
Particulars April 1, 2024 Proceeds Repayment March 21, 2025
Curreni Borrowings LD 4,300 00 (3,547 00 4,070.00
Non Curent Bemowings . 3,265 00 ; 3,265 00
Total lisbdites from teanaing actlvities 3,267.00 7,61500 | (3,547 00| 7,325.00
Recoansilimion of llenftes inom feancing aciivigss Toriho year dnsed Mecn 19, 2024
As at As at
Particulars April 1, 2023 Proceeds Repayment March 31, 2024

1 Curent Borrowings 73000 3,287 00 {750 001} 3,267.00
"I'| otal llabllitles from financing activitles 730.00 | 3,287.00 {750,001 3,267.00
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Reverie Language Technologies Limited

CIN: U74900GJ2009PLC157721

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are In ® Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

1. Corporate Information

Reverie Language Technologies Limiled (“lhe Company™) (CIN:U74900GJ2009PLC157721) was incorporated on 12th November 2009 The Company builds
fechnologies that are bridging the tanguage divide in the digital world Content from applications and portals can be delivered in multiple languagas in real-time
through the Company's Language-as-a-Service (LaaS) cloud platform The Company's LaaS cloud plalform serves lhe consumer inlernel space (online relail, e-
commerce marketplaces, fravel, social madia and messaging. vehicles for hire, etc ), banks and financial services and e-governance across millions of devices
The Company was converted into Limited company as Reverie Language Technologies Limiled wilh effect [rom 29lh April 2020 The Company has changed ils
regisiered office from the Stata of Karnataka to the Slate of Gujaral in the current Financial Year

2. Material Accounting Policies

2,1 Basis of Preparation & Presentation
The financial sialemenis has been prepared on the hislorical cost basis except for Lhe lollowing which are measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value,
i) Defined benefil and other long-term employee beneafit obligahons

The Financial Slatemenls ol the Company have been prepared to comply wilh the Indian Accounling slandards (‘Ind AS'), including Lhe rules notified under the
relevant provisions of the Compames Acl, 2013, amended from ime 1o lime

The Company's Financial Slalements are presented m Indian Rupees (¥), which is also s functional currency and all values are rounded 1o the nearest Lakh
{ 00,000}, except when olherwise indicaled

2.2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

a) Current and Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in lhe balance sheel based on current! non-curreni classificalion

An asset is trealed as current when it is;

- Expecled to be realized or intended te be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle;

- Expected to be realized within twelve monlhs afler the reparling period, or

- Cash or cash equivaleni unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at least twelve months after lhe reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is curreni when:

- It is expected to be seltled in normal aperating cycle;

- 115 due to be settled within twelve months after lhe reporting periad, or

- There is no unconditional righl lo defer lhe settlement of the liability for at leasl twelve monihs after the repaorting period

All olher habilties are classified as non-currentl

The operating cycle is Ihe lme between the acquisition of assels for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalenls The Company has evalualed and
considered its operating cycle as 12 monlhs

Dalerred tax assets / liabilities are classilied as non-current assets / liabilities

b) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, planl and equipmenl arg slated at cost, less accurmnulaled depreciation and impairment, if any Cosls dirgclly atinbutable to acquisition are capilahsed until
the property, planl and equipmenl are ready for use, as intended by managament

Advances paid towards Ihe acquisition of property, planl and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date 15 classified as capital advances under other non-
currenl assels and the cost of assets nol pul to use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital work-in-progress’ Subseguenl expenditures relating to property,
plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable thal fulure economic benefits associaled wilh these will low to the company and 1he cosl of lhe item can
be measured reliably

The cosl and retated accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial stalements upon sale or refirement of the asset and the resultani gains or losses
are recognised in the Siatemenl of Profit and Loss. Assels (o be disposed off are reported at ihe lower of (he carrying value or the fair value less cost 1o sell

The Company depreciates property, planl and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the WDV method The estimated useful lives of assels are as
lollows as per the indicative useful life presenibed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013:

[As=et Category Useful Liven (i Vears)
Fumniture and Fixtures 10
Compulers 3
Wnhicles 8
Electrical Installalions 15
Difize Ecuupment 5

The Company has evaluated lhe applicability of component accounling as prescribed under Ind AS 16 and Schedule Il of the Companies Acl, 2013, the
managemenl has not identified any significant component having differenl useful lives Schedule Il requires the Company to idenlify and depreciale significant
components with differenl useful lives separately

Deprecialion methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically and updated as required, including at each linancial year end
Gains or losses ansing from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment, capilal work in progress are measured a8 the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and are recogrised in the Stalement of Froflane: 5s-atan the assel is derecognised
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Reverie Language Technologies Limited

CIN: UT4900GJ2009PLC157721

Summary of Material Accounting Palicies and Other Explanatory Information for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

¢) Leases

The Company evaluales if an arrangement qualifies lo be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 Idenlficalion of a lease requires significant judgement The
Compary uses significant jJudgement in assessing the lease term {including anticipaled renewals) and lhe applicable discount rate The Company delermines lhe
lease terrn as lhe non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an oplions o extend the lease if the Company 1s reasonably cerlain o
exercise lhat oplions; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease f the Company is reascnably cerlain not (o exercise hat oplions In assessing
whelher lhe company is reasonably certain to exercise an option o exlend a lease, or nol lo exercise an option to terminate a lease, 1l considers all relevant facls
and circumslances that crate an economic incentive for the Company lo exercise lhe option to extend the lease, or not to exercise lhe oplion to lerminate the lease
The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in Ihe non-canceliable period of a lease The discount rate 1s generally based on the ingremenlal borrowing
rate specific to the lease being evalualed or for a portfolio of leases wilh similar characteristics

The Company depreciales lease hold improvemenls over lheir lease period using the Straight line method
d) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recorded al the consideration paid for lhe acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulaled amorisation and impairmen
Advances paid lowards the acquisition of nlangble assels oulstanding at each Balance Sheetf date are disclosed as other non-current assels and lhe cosl of
inlangible assets not ready for heir intended use beflore such dale are disclosed as imtangible assets under development

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assel and are recognised in lhe Slatement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assels are reviewed al each financial year end and adjusted prospeclively, Il appropnale

The Company amorlises iniangible over their estimated useful lives using the Straight line method The estimated vselul iives ol intangible assets are as follows.

Asset Calegory Uaeful Lives {in Years)
Computer Software 3
Others 3

Intangible assets development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits
are probable, the Company has an intenbion and ability lo complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably The costs which can be
capitalized include direcl labour and overhead cosls thal are direclly attributable to preparing the asset for ils intended use Intangible assels are amortised on a
slraight line basis over lhe estirmaled useful economic ife e, 3 years

e) Research and Development Expenditure

Revenue expendilure perlaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profil and Loss as and when incurred

Development cosls are capitalised as an intangible assel il il can be demonstrated that the project is expected to generate future economic benefils, il is probable
that those future economic benefits will flow to the enlity and the costs of lhe asset can be measured reliably, else iL1s charged lo lhe Slatement of Profit and Loss

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalenis comprise of cash on hand, cash al banks, short-term deposits and short-term, highly liquid invesimenls thal are readily convertible lo
known amaunts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes n value

g) Finarnce Costs

Borrowing cosls include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings lo lhe exent they are regarded as an adjustment 1o the interest cost
Borrowing cosls thal are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assels are capilalised as part of the cosl of such assets A qualifying asset
is one that necessarily takes subslantal peried of lime to get ready for its intended use

Inleresl income earned on lhe lemporary investment of specific borrowings pending Lheir expenditure on qualifying assels is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capilalisation

All olher borrowing costs are charged Lo Lhe Slalement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred

h) Impairment of Non Flnanclal Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Inlanglble Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting dale whelher there 1s an ndicalion that an asset may be impaired (f any indization exists, or when annual impaimenl
lesling for an assel 1s required, the Company estimates ihe asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash
generating unil's {CGL) nel selling price and its value in use The recoverable amount is delermined lor an individual asset unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largety independent of those from other assets or groups of assels Where the carrying amount of an assel or CGU exceeds Ils recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and 1s writlen down to ils recoverable amount In assessing value in use, the eslimated lulure cash lNows are discounted 1o their
present value using a pre-lax discounl rate thal reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specilic lo lhe asset In delermining net
selling price, recent market ransaclions are 1aken inlo account, il available. If ne such transactions can be identified, an appropriale valualion model 1s used

Impairment losses are recognised in the Slatement of Profit and Loss After impairment, deprecialion 1s provided on Lhe rewvised carrying amount of the asset over ils
remaining useful life

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whelher lhere 1$ any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exisl or may have
decreased If such indicalion exisls, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amounl A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assel's recoverable amount since lhe lasl impairmant loss was recognised The reversal is
imited so 1hat the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed ils recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been delermined, nel of
depreciation, had ne impairment loss been recognised for lhe asset in pnor years. Such reversal is recognised n the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset
15 carned al a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is trealed as a revaluation increase
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Reverie Language Technelogies Limited

CIN: UT4900GJ2009PLC157721

Summary of Material Accounling Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

i) Pravisions

A provision is recognised if, as a resull of a past evenl, lhe Company has a presenl legal or conslruclive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefils will be required to setlle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected fulure cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflecls current markel assessmenls of lhe ime value of money and {he nsks specific to the hability
The increase in the prowvision due Lo lhe passage of time 15 recognised as inleresi expense

i) Contingent Liabilities

A conlingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from pasl evenls whose exislence will be canfimned by the occurrence or non-agcurrence ol ong or more
uncertain future evenls nol wholly within the control of the Company or a present cbligation that is not recognised because 1l 1 not probable lhat an outflow of
resources will be required lo setfie the abligation or it cannol be measured walh sufficienl reliabiity The Company does nol recognise a conlingenl labihty but
discloses ils existence in lhe linancial stalements

k) Employee Benefits Expenses

Short-Term Employee Benefits

The undiscountad amount of shon-term employee benefits expecled to be paid in exchange for the services renderad by employees are recognised as an expense
during the period when the employees render the services

Past-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

Retirement benelit in the form of provident fund and employee state insurance scheme is a defined contribution scheme The Company has no obligation, other lhan
lhe contribution payable lo the provident fund and employee slate insurance scheme The Company recognises contribution payable to the schemes as an
expendilure, when an employee renders the related service Prapaid contributions are recognised as an assel to the extent that a cash refung or a reduction n the
fulure payments is available

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity

Gratuily is a posl employment benefit and is a defined benefil plan The liability recogmsed m the Balance Sheel represents the present value of the defined benefil
obligation al Ine Balance Sheel dale, less the fair value of plan assets (if any), togelher wilh adjustment ler unrecognised acluarial gains or losses and past service
cosl. Independent acluanes using the Projected Unit Credil Melhod calculale the delined benefit obhgation annually. Graluity plan of the Company is unfunded
deflined benefit plan

Compensated Absences

The Company provides benefit of compensated absences under which unavailed leave are ailowed to be accumulated to be availed in fulure The ¢ompensated
absences comprises of vesling as well as non vesting benefil The cosl of shorl term compensated absences are provided for based on eslimates Long term
compensated absence cosls are provided for based on actuarial valuation using lhe projecl unit credit method The Company treats accumulated leave expected to
be carned forward beyond 12 months, as long-lerm employee benefit for measuremenl purposes. Acluanal gainsflosses are immediately taken lo the Stalement of
Profil ard Loss and are not deferred The Company presenls (he leave as a current liability in the Balance Sheel, to the extent it does not have an uncondilional right
lo deler 1ls settlement for 12 months afler the reporling dale VWhere the Company has lhe unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the setilement for a
penod beyond 12 months, the same is presenled as non-current liability

The presenl value of the defined benefit obligalion denorminated in  is determined by discounling lhe estimated fulure cash outflows by reference lo market yields at
the end of the reporting penod on government bonds thal have {erms approximating to the terms of the related obligalion

Delined benefit costs are categorised as follows

-Service cost (including current senvice cosl, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curlailments and seltlements);

-Net interesi expense or income; and

-Reineasurement

For delined benefit plan, in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benelils is determined using the Projected Unit Credil method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each Balance Sheet date Remeasuremenl gains and losses are recognised in lhe Olher comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur The relirement benelit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefil obligalion as adjusted for unrecognised
pasl service cosl, as reduced by lhe fair value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited lo pasi service cost, plus the presenl value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefil cosls in prefit or loss in the line item *'Employee benelits expenses’ Curtailment gains and losses
are accounted for as past service Costs

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represenls the aclual deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulling
from this calculation 1s imited fo ihe presenl value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributicns o lhe

plans

A liability for a lerminalion benefil is recognised al (he eartier of when the enlity can no longer withdraw the offer of Ihe terminalion benefit and when the entity
recognises any related restruclunng costs

Gains and losses through re-measurements of the defined benefil plans are recognized in other comprehensive ncome, which are not rectassified to profil or loss in
a subsequenl period Further, as required under Ind AS compliant Schedule 1, lhe Company iransfers those amounts recognized in other comprehensive income lo
retained earnings in lhe slalement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet




Reverie Language Technologles Limited

CIN: U74900GJ2009PLC157721

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Informatlon for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amonnts are in ® Lakhs, unless otharwise stated

I) Tax Expenses

The 1ax expenses for the period comprises of current lax and deferred income tax Tax is recognised in Statement of Profil and Loss, except to the extent that it
relales to ilems recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income In which case, the 1ax s also recognised in Qlher Comprehensive Income

i) Current Tax

Current 1ax assels and liabililies are measured at lhe amounl expecled (o be recovered rom or paid to lhe Income Tax autherities, based on lax rates and laws Lhal
are enacted at lhe BPalance sheet date

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary difierences between carrying amounts of assets and Kabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes

Deferred tax liabililies are recognized lor all laxable lemporary differences

The carrying amouni of deferred 1ax assels Is reviewed al each reporting dale and reduced lo the exlent thal it is no longer probable Ihal sufficient laxable profil will
be available lo allow all or part of lhe deferred 1ax assel to be utilized

Deferred tax assets and liabililes are measured al lhe lax rates that are expected lo apply in the period when lhe asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on
lax rales {and lax laws} thal have been enacled or substantively enacted at the reporting date

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from lhe manner in which lhe Company expects, al lhe reporling dale, to recover
or setle the camrying amount of its assets ang liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsel if there is a legally enforceable right o offset current tax liabiibes and assels, and ihey relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same laxable entity, or on different tax entities, bul they intend to settle current tax liabilites and assetls on a net basis or their lax
assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously

m) Forelgn Currencles Transactions and Translations

Functional and presenlalion currency
The funclicnal currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. These linancial slalements are presented in Indian Rupees (3}
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transaclions are translated into the tunctional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transaclions Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from lhe setilement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in Statemenl of Profil or Loss. They are deferred in equity if they relale to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
inveslment hedges or are atlribulable lo parl of the net invesiment in a foreign operation. A monetary item for which settlement is neilher planned nor likely to occur
In lhe loreseeable future is considered as a part of lhe enlity's net investment in that loreign operation

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustmenl to borrowing costs are presented in the Slatement of Prafit and Loss, within finance costs. All olher foreign
exchange gains and losses are presenled in the Statemnent of Profil and Loss on a net basis within other gains/{losses)

Non-monetary ilems (hat are measured at fair value in a loreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined
Translation differences on assels and habilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss

n) Revenue Recognition

Sate of Services

Revenue from contracts with cuslomers is recognised when conirol of Lhe goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that rellecls the
consideralion enlitied in exchange for these goods or services The Company has generally concluded ihat it is the piincipal in its revenue arrangement, as il
typically controls the goods or services before translerring them to the customer Generally, conlrel 1s transfer upon shipment of goods o lhe customer or when the
goods is made available (o Ihe customer, provided Iransfer of lille to the custamer occurs and he Company has not retained any significanl rnisks of ownership or
Tulure abligations with respect lo lhe goods shipped

Revenue lowards salizfaction of performance obligalion is measured at an amounl of lransaction price (net of variable consideralion) allocated to thal performance
obligation The transaction pnce of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideralion on account of discounts and other schemes offered by 1he
Company as a part of contracl, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example laxes and dulies collected on behalf of lhe government)

Unhilled Revenue
Unbilled Revenue included in other currenl assels represent revenues reécognised on services rendered as per contraclual lerms, for which amounls are 10 be billed
in subsequenl penods

Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue included in ather current liabililies represent billings in excess of revenues recognised Advances received lor services are reported as liabilities
uniil all conditions for revenue recognition are met

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable Ihal the economic benefits will flow to lhe Cornpany and the amount ol income can be
measured reliably Interest income 15 accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effeclive interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exaclly discounts eslimated future cash receipts Ihrough ihe expected life of he financial asset to that asset's net cammying amounl on initial recognilion

Dividend Income
Divigend income from investments is recogmised when the shareholder's right lo receive paymeni has been established
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Reverie Language Technologies Limited

CIN: U74900GJ2009PLC157721

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Informatlon for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

o) Financial Instruments
i) Financial Assets
A. Initlal Recognltlon and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and fransaction cost thai is attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset is also adjusted However trade
recewvables that do nol contain a significant financing companenl are measured al trangaction price

B. Subsequent Measurement

a. Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A Financial Asset is measured at Amortised Cost if it is held within & business model whose objective is to hold the assel in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contracival terms of the Financial Asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount cutstanding

b, Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCI)

A Financial Asset is measured at FYTOCH if it is held within a2 business model whose objective is achieved by both collecling contractual cash Mows and seiling
Financial Assels and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on speciied dates to cash llows thal represents sclely payments of principal and interest
on the pnn¢ipal amounl outstanding

L3

¢. Financlal Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A Financial Assel which 1s nol classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL Financial assets are reclassified subsequent 1o their recognition, if
the Gorpany changes its business model for managing those financial assels. Changes in business model are made and applied prospectively from the
reclassificalion date which is the first day of immediately nexl reporling period following the changes in business model in accordance with principles laid down under
Ind AS 108 — Financial Instruments

C. Other Equity Investments

All olher equily invesiments are measured at fair value, with value changes recogrised in Stalernent of Profit and Loss, except for those equity invesiments ler which
the Company has elecied to present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income' However, dividend on such equity investments are recogrised in
Statement of Profit and loss when the Company's nghl to receive payment is established

D. Impalrment of Flnanclal Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluatng impairment of Financial Assels olher han those measured at
Fair Value Through Profit and Loss {FVTPL)

Expecled Credil Logses are measured through a loss allowance al an amount equal to:

» The 12-menths expected credil losses (expected credit losses thal resull from lhose default events on the financial instrument Lhat are possible within 12 months
afler the reporting date};

Or
» Full lifetime expected credit losses {(expecled credil losses thal result from all possible default events over the life of the financial inslrument)

For Trade Receivables the Company applies 'simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses lo be recognised from initial recegnition of lhe receivables

The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of lrade receivables At every reporting dale these historical defaull rates
are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed

For other assets, the Company uses 12 monih ECL to provide for impairment loss where lhere is no significant increase in credit risk If there 1s significant increase
in credit risk full ifetime ECL is used

ii. Financial Liabilities

A, Inltial Recognition and Measurement

All Financial Liabilities are recognised at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of direclly attributable cost Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in lhe
Slalement of Profit and Loss as finance cost

B. Subsequent Measurement

Finangial Liabililies are carried at amorlised cost using ihe effective inlerest method For trade and olher payables maiuring within one year from the Balance Sheel
date, the carrying amounls approximale fair value due 1o the short maturity of lhese instruments




Reverie Language Technologles Limited
CIN: U74900G.J2009PLC157721

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
Al Amounte are in ¥ Lakhs, unless olherwlse stated

iii. Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The Company derecognises a Financial Assel when lhe contractual rights 1o 1he cash flows from the Financial Assel expire or it lransfers the Financial Assel and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109 A Financial hiability {or a part of 2 Financial liability) is derecognised from the Company's Balance Sheet when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires

iv. ONsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabililies are offsel and the nel amount is presenied in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amount and it inlends, eilher o settle lhem on a net basis or to realise the asset and seitle the liability simullanegusly

The Company derecognises a Financial Assel wnen lhe conlraciual nghls lo the cash flows from the Financial Asset expire or il transfers Ihe Financial Assel and lhe
transler qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109 A Financial habdily {or a part of a Financial liability) is derecognised from the Company’s Balance Sheet when
the obligalion specified in lhe contracl is discharged or cancelled or expires

p} Non-current Assets Held for Sale

Nan-cureni assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally hrough a sale transaction rather than through conlinuing use
and sale is considered highly probable

A sale is considered as highly probable when decision has been made lo sell, assels are available for immediate sale in ils presenl condition, assets are being
aclively marketed and sale has been agreed or 18 expected to be concluded wilhin 12 monlhs of the date of classification

Non-curreni assels held lor sale are neither deprecialed nor amorised
There is no such assets during the period

q) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculaled by dividing the nel prolit after tax by the weighled average number of equily shares outstanding during lhe year adjusted for
bonus element in equity share. Diluted earnings per share adjusls lhe figures used in delerminalion of basic earnings per share to lake into account the conversion
of all dilulive potential equity shares Ditulive potential equity shares are deemed converted as al the beginming of the period unless issued al a later date

2.3. Critical Accouting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainity

The pregaralion of the Company's Financial Statements requires management to make judgement, eslimates and assumptions lhat affect the reporied amount of
revenue, expenses assels and liabiliies and the accompanying disclosures Uncertainty aboul these assumptions and estimales could result in outcomes that
require a matertal adjusiment to the carrying amounl of assets or liabilities affecled n next financial years

a) Property, Plant and Equipmentiintangible Assets

Estimales are involved in determining [he cost attributable (o bringing the assets lo lhe location and condition necessary for it to be capable ol operating in lhe
manner intended by the management. Property, Plant and Equipment/intangible Assels are depreciated/amortised over Iheir estimated uselul ife, after taking into
account estimaled residual value Management reviews the eslimaled useful Iife and residual values of the assels annually in order to delermine the amounl of
depreciation/ amortisation 1o be recorded during any reporling penod The useful life and residual values are based on the Company's hisloncal experience wilh
similar assets and lake into account anlicipated technological changes The depreciationfamortisation for future periods 15 revised if there are significant changes
fron' previous estimates

b) Recoverabllity of Trade Receivables & Unbilled Revenue

Judgments are required in assessing (he recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a prowision against those receivables is required
Faclors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amounl and timing of anticipaled fulure payments and any possible actions that can be taken to
mitigate the nsk of nan-payment

¢} Provisions
The liming of recognition and quantification of (he liability (including litigations) requires the applicalion of judgement to exisling facts and circumstances, which can
be subject 1o change The carrying amounts of provisions and liabililies are reviewed regularly and revised 1o lake account of changing facts and circumstances

d) Impalrment of Financial and Non Financial Assets

The impairment provisions lor Financial Assels are based on assumplions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates The Company uses judgement in
making lhese assumplions and selecting the inpuls to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, exising market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at lhe end of each reporling period

In case of non-financial assels company estimales asset's recoverable amount, which is higher of an asset's or Cash Generaling Units {CGU's) fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use

i mazeeaing valE in Lsa, (e pslimaiEd fuhes sash Sovws ore deecourind 0 ihes presen] volug unanf pre-lae distount e thal refectn Sumesl Mans] essessmpny
of ihe time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In delermining fair uslus S comts of deaposal, feoant marke Eaanscliong 8 ke o acooant. g
such lransaclions can be denlified, an appropriale valuation model is used

e) Fair Value Measurement
For estimates relating 1o [air value of financial inslruments refer nole 29 of financial slatemenls
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Reverie Language Technalogies Limited

CIN: U74900G2009PLC157721

Notga Forming perl of Financials Sialements for ihe Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

4_ Qther Fi lal As:
i il A5 El
Parrisdin s Wil iat Waes)i
s -
Umsarmrad, Gormidared Genn
Hieson iy Hopoim TEE (L]
Tartal iT.63 1591
5 Other Nan Current Assete
{ As at As at
Periculars it March 3=t March
2026 2024
Unsecured, Considered Good
Prapaid Lease 145 313
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source 8141 2727
Prepaid Expenses 151 287
atal 54 37 3327
A Timdh Aoz evaliles
A m Him
L T I il March Tiai Warzii
oy =
L e e
L i it Tl 154 17 SLm
EEmetai Tnibali 280 15 T 8
434 32 J1E N
Liid Egimctus Cogild & bad Poosapsir AN 15 (ehr.oa|
1 uial 15T ELaY
6 1 Trada Receivablas Ageing as sl 1151 March, 2025
Curstanding from due daie of payment Total
Particulars - - B
Not Dus <8 B months -1| 1-2 years | 2-3 years » 3 years
montha * yaar
undisputed Trade recewables — considered good 95 0 BH 54 - 884 3269 227 88 434 32
Undispuled Trade Recewalilas — which have significant increass in credi ngk
Undisputed Trade Recewables — credil impaired
[ispuled Trade receivatiles - eonsidered good
Disputed Trade Recevables — which have significant ncrease tn credit niek
Disputed Trade Recewvablas — cradit impaired E
Total 96.01 68.59 - 8.85 3280 22798 | 434 32
€ 2 Trade Receivables Ageiny as on 215t March igd
Clustsbairding T s dals of pigmen Tiemai
Particulars £ Emenitis - 1| 1-7 gpar 1-3 yemt ] paad
Holb Dk
e TTLITEY s
s spdmi Trane ~ considered [ux AE i [ET] | T [FLT] S i
Limapoied Trang Seomeskien - anch hase ag 0 il S - - - "
Lirif g, raim 1 i — 2 T e =
Drsprubisd Tosde seoaivalies - comilemd good - =
e True | - which have sianificanl increéase n credd nsk -
- Tris Ratit 00l = Dnd s . ] :
a8 M A% 328N HEAT mwm 18R

*The Company uses a prowision matrx (o determine expectad credil loss on portfolio of ils rade recsnvable The prowvision matrix 1s based on I's historically observed default rales over lhe sxpecied hfe of Lhe
Irade recevshle and 15 adusted for forward-locking esimates At each reporing pencd the fustoncally abserved defaull rales ars updeled and changas In lorward-looking esimates are analysed The
expecled credit loss allowance is based on the ageng of the days he receivables are due and Lhe rates as given in L8 pravision malnx The provision matri< al the end of the reporling penod |5 as follows

ECL Percentag:s as on 31st March 2025

Category Ageing in days : |

Not Due 090 90180 (180270 (270360 | Above 360

Expected Credil Loss % 3 64% 7 97% 20 25% 41 00% 77 43‘.1-1 100 00%
ECL Percentages as on J1et March 2024

Cutegory Ageing in days |

Mot Due 050 B0-180 180-270 B70-360 Above 35"‘

Expected Credit Loss % 221% 6 45% 12 81% 3311% 29 57| 100 00%

Lakhs {Pravicus year (¥ 12 48) Lakhs) included abpve are disclosed in nole 27

The Loimpany & aspoess (o ool i —aiamses nsks, and [oss allowances related lo trade recaivables are disclosed in note 30 And the related party transaclions and recewvable autstanding of ¥ 1091



Revarie Language Technologlas Limited

CIN:- UT4900GI2008PLC18T7 21

Notes Forming part of Financlals Statements for the Year Ended 31181 March 2025
All fovaunts are in ¥ Lakhs, unlese otherwlee slated

7. Cash and Cash Fouissmsmm

As at As at
Partlculars 31at March 31st March
2026 2024
Dalances with Banks
- In Current Accounts 3885 140 47
Total 13.65 140,47
9. Other Financial Assets
An at Aw at
Partlculars 31at March 31st March
2026 203d
Unsecured, Consldered Good
Advance 10 Employses 110
Unbilled Revenus (Reter Note 8 11 192 18 120 60
Total 192,19 121.70
&1 Unbliled Revenue
As al As mt
Particulars 18t March 31t March
2025 2024
Unagcured
Conederad Good 192198 12060
Considered Doubitful 4983
25‘?__92 120,60
Less Expected Cradit Loss Provision (49 83)
Total 162 19 120.80
8. Cther Current Aswats
As at As at
Particulary 3181 March 31st March
o —
‘Unsscured, Conslderad Good
Prepaid Exponsas 5998 5129
Balances with Governmant Authonties 14312 18715
Advance lo Supphers 17 48 783
220 57 204,27

Total

EFNE - |I"| .I-:' | -




Reveria Language Technologlea Limited

CIN; UT4900GJ2009PLC157721

Notee Forming part of FInanclals Statementa for the Year Ended 3181 March 2026
All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otharwise stated

1. Equty Bhare Tapital

1 As at As at
Particulars 1 31at March 2025 3150 March 2024
Nurmber Amount Number Amouni
Authoriged Share Capital
Equity Shares of 210 each 25 000 250 25,000 2450
Preference Shares 31100 each 4,200 420 4,200 420
1 29,200 5.70 29.200 6.70
lasuad, Subscribed and Paid up
Fully Paid Equity Shares of 10 each {Previous year- 310 each) 21378 213 21,378 213
| 21,378 2.13 21,378 213
a) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Cutatanding at the Beginning and at the End of the Year
_ l As at As al
Particulars 31st March 2026 31st March 2024
Number | Amount Number Amount
Equity Sharee of #10 each
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 21,378 213 21,378 213
Add Issued During the Yaar . -
Balance at the End of the Year 21378 213 21,378 213
b} Details of Shareholders Holding more than 5% of the Shares in the Company
Particulars Ag at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
1 Number [ % Number Y
Equity Shares of ¥10 gach |
Mr Anand Pam | 1378 645% 1,378 G 45%
Mr Vivekananda Fam 1378 6 45% 1,378 6 45%
Jio Platforms Limited 18 078 B4 56% 18,078 84 56%
i 20834 | 20,834

¢) Shareholding of Promoter

Shareholding of Promotar as on 315t March 2025

| No. of Shargs at Change Durin Mo. of Sharas at % Change Durin
Class of Equity Share Promoter's Name the Beginning of g g the End of the % of Total Shares| " 9 o
the Year the Year
| the Year Year
Fully paid-up equity shares of Rs 10 each Jia Plaforms Limited | 18 078 4 18078 : 84 56% 0 0%
Total | 18.078 - 18.078

d} Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has anly one class of issued equily shares having par value of 10 each Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share In the event of igudation of
lhe Company, the helders of equity shares will be enlilled to receive any of 1the remaining assets of the Campany, afler distnbulion of prelerential amount, if any The distnbulion will
be in praportion lo lhe number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesling shall be payable in Indian rupees

8) Issug of Equity Shares for Conelderation other than Cash
The Company has not issued any bonus sharas, has not issued any shares for consideration olher Lhan cash and has not bought back any shares in lhe immedialely preceding five

years
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Reverie Language Technologlas Limlted

CIN: UT4900GJ2009PLC167721

Notew Forming part of Financlals Statements for the Year Ended 31sl March 2025
All Amounts are In ¥ Lakha, unless otherwlae atated

11. Other Equity

Ag at Asal
e 318t March 2026 | 31st March 2024

Securitles Premium Actount

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 17 240 B% 17,240 69
&dd:Prem.um on Shares Issued During the Year - -
Balance at the End of the Yaar 17,240.8% 17,240.63
Deficlt In Statement of Profit and Loss

Balanse at the Beginning of the Year {6,860 00} (6,920 38)
Add Prefiti(Loss) for the Year (7918} 7937
Other Comprehensive Income 124 73} 12 99)
Balance at the end of the year {6,963.88) {6.860.00)
Total 10,276.81 10,380.69

Nature and Purpose of Other Equity

Saecuritles Pramlum Account
Securities pramium account represents premium received on issue of shares The reserve is ulilisad in accordance with the proviaions of the Companies Act

Retslned Earnings
Retained earnings comprisaa of amounts that can be distributed by the company as dividend to ils aquity shareholdars




Reverie Language Technologies Limited
CIN: UT4900GJ2009PLC 157721

Notes Forming part of Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

12 Provisions

Particulars As at As at
J1st March 2025 31st March 2024
Non-gurrent
Prowision for Employee Benefils
- Graluily {reler nole 28) 215 47 162 85
- Compensated Absences an 22 2115
Total 245 69 184.00
Current
|Prowision for employee benefits
- Graluily {refer nole 28) 28 12 2155
- Compensated Absences 270 250
Total ansg2 2405
13. Borrowings
Parliculars LT i
31at March 2025 31st March 2024
Non-current
Unsecured
From Gthers
Rupee Loans - From Banks 3,265 00
Maximum Amcount Qutstanding at any me dunng the year was Rs 3,285 Lakhs (Previous Year NIL )
Total 3.265.00 -
Current
Unsecured
From Others
Rupee Loans - From Banks 4,070 00 3,267 00
Maximum Amount Quisianding at any lime during lhe year was Rs 4,805 |akhs {Previous Year Rs 3,267 Lakhs)
Tolal 4,070.00 3,267.00
14 Trade Payables
Particular As at e
s 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Total Qutslanding dues of Micro and Small Enlerprises (refer note below) 508 13 90
Total Qutstanding dues of olher than Micro and Small Enterprises 291 89 577 48
Total 298,97 591.38
14 1 Trade Payables Ageing as on 31st March 2025
Particulars Qutstanding from due date of payment Tolal
Not Due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
MSME 404 104 508
Others 141 42 150 45 q02 291 89
Digpuied-MSME = < .
Disputed-Others . -
Subtotal 145.46 151.49 ' 0.02 - 296.97
14 2 Trade Payables Ageing as on 31st March 2024
Parliculars Qutatanding from due date of payment Total
Not Due < 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years » 3 years
MSME 13 80 13 90
Others 413 22 164 24 002 577 48
Disputed-MSME - = - - =
Disputed-Olhers 1 -
Subtotal 427.12 164 24 002 59138
MNote:

The managemant has identilied enterprises which have provided geods and services Lo Ihe Company and which gualfy under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as
defined under Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 {MSMEDA) Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of lhe amounts payable to such enterprises as
at 31st March 2025 has been made in the financials slaterments based on informalion received and available with the Company and the same has been relied upon by the

audilors

This mcludes Related party ransactions and payable outslanding of ¥ 224 52 Lakhs (Previous year - 2 522 91 Lakhs} and a

re disclosed in Note 27
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Reverie Language Technologies Limited
CIN: U74900GJ2009PLC157721

Notes Forming parl of Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhg, unless otherwise stated

14.3 Mther Financial Liabilities

Particulars o L GEICE
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Payables for Purchase of Properly, Plant & Equipment (Refer Nole 1 below) 19 54 1555
Interest accrued but not due 28 27 620
Olher Liabilies 23272 200 25
Total 280.53 22200
Note:1
Payables for Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment as on 31st March 2025

Particulars Qutstanding from due date of payment Total

Not Due < 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yaars > 3 years

MSME 350 390
Olhers 227 13 37 - 15 64

Dnsputed-MSME

Disputed-Others = = l

Subtotal 6.17 13.37 - - - 19.54

Payables for Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment as on 31st March 2024

Particulars Qutstanding from due date of payment Total
Mot Due < 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
MSME 15 55 - - - - 15 53
Disputed-MSME - -
Disputed-Others =
Subtotal 15.55 = - - 15.55

15. Other Current Liahilities

R As at As at
Particulars 31at March 2025 315t March 2024
Statutory Remiltances 78 08 B8 28
Deflemed Revenue 2148 503
QOlher Liabilities 915 12 98
Total 108 71 106.29
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Reverie Language Technologles Limited
CIN: UT4800GJ2009PLC1567721

Notes Forming part of Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2025

All Amounts are in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

16. Revenue from Operations

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March 2025

For the Year Ended
31t March 2024

Sale of Services

- IT Consulting & Suppart Services 878 36 832 41
- Translation & Inferpretalion Services 867 42 560 19
1,545.78 1,392.60
Disaggregate Revenue Information
The table below presents disaggregated revenues from conlracis with cuslomers based on the lime of transfer of services
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
" 31at March 2025 J1st March 2024
Revenue by Timing of Transfer of Services
Transfer at a Point of Time 1,034 00 785 69
Transfer over Time 51178 606 91
1,546.78 1,392.60
17. Other Income
Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
J1st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Gain on Sale/Redemption of Current Invesiments 0.08 .
Interest income on fixed deposits - 034
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.85 24 21
Miscellaneous Income 7.92 4 61
Interest Income on Financial Assets carried al Amortised cost 1.45 1.3
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Notes Forming part of Financials Slatements for the Year Ended 31st March 2025

All Amounte are in ¥ Lakhs, unless olherwlse stated

18. Employse Benefits Expense

Particuiars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
376l March 2025 Mst March 2024
Salanes, Wages and Bonus 2688102 2,514 38
Conlnbuben lo Providenl and Qther Funds 52 65 5087
Gratuity 6703 5213
Siaft Wellare Expense 45 22 18 01
Less Transfer to Inlangible Assel Under Development {Refer Mole No; 3 2) 12,582 85) {2,188 08}
46607 448 41
19. Finance Costs
Partlculars For lhe Year Endad For the Yaar Ended
J1e1 March 2025 J1s1 March 2024
Inlgrest on Borrawangs 424 32 178 35
Less: Transfer 1o Inlangible Asset Under Development (Refer Note No. 3.2 (318 24} {134 511
108.06 4484 |

20 Other Expenses

For ihs Yaar Ended For the Year Ended
g 31st March 2025 315t March 2024
Legal and Profe ssional Fees 587 B2 31122
Advert t and Busi Premotion 3394 5198
Rent 202 0 195 86
Travgling and Conveyance Expenses 58 92 57 59
Subscription Expenses 72099 628 79
Caommunication Expenses 08 515
Recruilmenl Expenses 2782 2114
Insurance 7735 7702
Office Mainl2nance and Housekesping 103 J14
Repairs and Mainlenance 811 1017
Rales and Taxes 26 65 sl
Loss on sale/discarding of assels 10 44
Engineering Expenses 2912 130 50
Provision [or Expected Credit losses on lrade receivables 62 60 152 20
Audit Fees® 2404 2162
|Bank Charges 030 030
Prinling and Slalionery 063 LR
| Miscellaneous Expenses 075
1875 B6 1,691 15
Less Transfer to [nlangible Assel Under Development (Refer Note Mo 3 2) (824 95| (8356 62)
| Total Olher Expenses 1.050 91 k)
Note on Remuneralion io Audilors *
Statutory Audit 1362
Dlhers 650
Dlhers (Certrficalion) 150
2162

~ Excluding applicable laxes
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Motes Forming part of Financials Stataments for Lhe Year Ended 3181 March 2025
ANl &mounls ara in ¥ Lakhs, unless otharwise staled

21 Conlingent Llabliities and Commitments

[i} Cantingent Liabililies

The Company does nol have any cantingen! liability as on 31st March, 2025 (Predious year - NIL}

{iijCommiimants:

Estimated amounls of contracls remaining (o be execuled on capilal accoun! {nel of advances) and not provided amounts to NIL {Previous year: NIL}

(lii) Guaranteas
Guarantees given by banks on behalf of ilia cémpany for contraclual abligations of the Company amounts ko ¥ 21 53 Lakhs (Previous year 2 14 11 Lakhs) The necessary lerms and conditions have
been complied valh and ne habilibes hia aiiies

22, Disclosures required under Seclion 22 of the Micro, Small and Madium Enlerprises Davelopmenl Aci, 2006

As al As el
316l March 2025 318t March 2024
{iy Frincipal amounl remaining unpaid Lo any suppher as at the end of (he accounting year 8988 2945

{ii} Interest due thergon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at \he end of Ihe accounling year
(iii} The amouni of inlerest paid along wilh the amounts of the paymenl made lo the suppher beyond Lhe appointed day

Partlculare

(w)The amount of inlerest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but bayond
the appointed day during Lhe year) bul withoul adding (he Interesl specified under the MSMED Act

{¥) The amount of inleresl accrued and rernaining unpaid &t he end of Lhe accounbng year

(w) The amounl of further inlerest due and payable even in the succesdng year unlil such date when Lhe inleresl dugs as
above are aclually paid to Ihe small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deduclible expenditure under seclion
23

Dues lo micro and small enlerpnisas have been determined to the extenl such parlies fave beer el of T bees of mfnrmatse Celemad By i Matagunsie [hs Ry besn rabed opoe by T
audilors

21 Deferred Tax Asseti{Llabllity)

The Company has unabsorbed depreciation and unused lax losses al lhe end of lhe year The nel deferred lax assel has nol been recagnised on such losses and unabgorbed depreciation on
prudenl basis The Company has no! crealed deferred lax assels on tha following

Particulars As at March M, 2025 Ap el March 31, 2024

Unused Tax Losses which expire in the Following Financial Years {"FY"}:

FY 2026-27 F¥9 04 o914 27

FY 2028-29 52 09 5209
Unansorpad Degeecialion iof e gbowe Fimanclal Years 438 10 462 65
24 Earnings Per Share

Particulara For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
J1st March 2025 J1at March 2024

Nel Profit/{Loss) afler Tax {79 15) 7037
Weighled Average Number of Equity Shares Oulstanding (Mos 3 21,378 21,278
[Basic Eamingsi{Loss) Per Share (370 24) an v
Diluted Eamings/(Loss) Per Share {370 24) 371 27
Nominal Value Per Share 10 10
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Notas Ferming parl of Financials Statements for the Year Ended 34st March 2025
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25 Segment Information

The Board of Direclor of the Gompany has been idenlified as the Chiel Operaling Decision Maker {CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108- Operating Seqments The CODM evaluates Lhe Company
performance and allocales resourcas based on "Infermation Technology Platfarm Services” pedormance which conslilules a single reporting segment

Enmilij-wids sigcholurni il reguiris by il A5 100 Cyarstieg Sop are o fodlowa:

Parliculars

For the Year Endad
3ist March 2025

For the Year Ended
Jiel March 2024

Revenues from Exlemal Cuslomers for each Producl or each Group of Similar Services

Sale of Services 1,945 78 1,392 60
1,545 78 1,392.80
iRevenues from External Cuslomers Aftributed to the Company's Counlry of Domicile and Attnibuted to all
Forelgn Countrles from which the Company Derives Re
India 1.545 70 1,392 60
Outside India .
1,545.78 1,302 80
Non-current Aseete (Excluding Income Tax Assets) located In the Company's Couniry of Domicile and In all
Foralgn Counlries in which the Company holds Aseets
Indra 17,819 67 14,170 52
Dulside India
17,919 67 14,170 52
Delails in respect of Parcentage of Revenues generated from Top Cusiomer and R from Tr liony
with Customers amounls to 10 percent or mera of Company's Revenues from Product Sale 1
Revenue from Top Cuslomer 52145 71531
Percenlage 3373% 51 3%%
Revenue from Customers Conlribuling 10% or more to lhe Company’s Revenues from Producl Sale 101012 956 70
Percenlaga 65 35% 68 710%

26 Capilal management

For the purpase of lhe Company's capital managemenl, capilal includes 1ssued capilal, addihional paid 1n capilal and all olher equity reservas atinbutable 1o Whe equity shareholders Company The

primary objeclive of he Campany's capital management is 1o maximise the shareholder value

The Company manages s capilzl struclure and makes adjustments in lightl of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of Lhe financial covenanls To mainlain or adjusl lhe capial

structure, the Company may adjusl the dwvidend payment ta shareholders, relum capital Lo shareholdars or issue new shares

As at As al
Parliculara 3151 March 2025 3161 March 2024
Total Equity Atlnbutable lo the Equity Sharehalders of the Company 10,272 94 10,302 B2
As 8 percentage of Tolal Capital 58 26% 76 07%
Borrawings from Financral Inshilulions and Organization 7.335 00 3,267 00
As a percenlage of Total Capital 41 64% 23 93%
Fotal Capltel (Equity & Barrowlnge) 17,613 94 13,649 B2

The Company is mainly [unded through equity share capital subscribed by the investors of the Company hrough Right issue and borrowings from banks
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27, Related Party Transactions

Nature of Relationship

Mame of Related Parties

Ulimale Helding Company
Helding Company

Fellow Subsidianes

Kay Managerial Personnel (KMP)

lEntlly in which Direclor's Relative is a Direclor

Rehance Industries Limiled
Jio Ptatforms Limited

Rehance Retail Limited

NowFloats Technologies Limiled

Relrance Projecls & Property Management Services Limiled
Relianca Paymenls Solulion Limied

Jin Haptik Technologies Limiled {w.e [ 1810 February 2025)

Mr Arvind Pani - Whole Time Director (Till 10th March 2025) and Director (w e f 11th March 2025)

Mr Vivekananda Pani - Whole Time Direclor (Till 10ih March 2025) and Direclor (w & 1 1 (1h March 2025)
Ms Ari Dugar - Company Secretary (Till 11th April 2023)
Ms Freetha Rajeshkumar - Director {w e [ 121h Apnl 2023 Till 6l October 20223

iMmI Innovation Labs Privale |imiled

Detalls of Related Parties Transacilons for tha Year Ended 316l March 2025 and 31st March 2024 ara as follows :

Mature of Tranaactions! Name of Related Party

Cescriplion of ihe Relationshlp

Fer the Year Ended
31at March 2025

For the Year Ended
31at March 2024

Remuneration

Mr Arvind Pani KMP 86 90 97 86
Mr Vivekananga Pam KMP 86 B9 a2 24
Mr Arvind Pani Consullant 007
Mr Vivekananda Pani Consullant 007
Revenue From Cperetlons
Relance Relail Limited Fellow Subsidiary 2414 7297
Reliance Paymenlts Solulion Limiled Feliow Subsidiary Q27
NowFloats Technologies Limited Fellow Subsidiary 10 00
Jio Haptik Technologies Limited Fellow Subsidiary 028
Jio Plattorrs Limiled Holding Company 521 45 620 18
Mool Innovation Labs Privale Limited Enlity i which Director's Relative s 100
a Direclor
Subacriplion Expenses
Jio Platforms Limiled Holding Compary 495 76 42976
Rental Expenses
Relhance Projects & Property Management Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary . 4901
Reliance Industries Limiled Ullimale Holding Company 154 53 102 82
Details of Ameunts Outstanding fram Related Parties are as follows -
Descriptlan of the Relatlonshlp As at As at
Nature of Transactions/ Hame of Relatad Party O TR 3158 March 2024
Trade Receivables
Reliance Retail Limited Fellow Subsidhary 1086 737
Jio Haplik Technologies Limited Fellow Subsidrary 005 -
J Platforms Limited Holding Company 511
Trade Payables
Reliance Induslries Limited Ulimate Halding Company 2518 4168
Jlio Platfarms Limiled Holding Company 195 34 481 23

Note Jio Platiorms Limiled had prowvided a lelter of comfortfundertaking to the bank regarding bormowngs obtaned by the Company
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Notes Forming part of Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31at March 2025
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2B. Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefils

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receving services are classified as short-lerm employee benefils These benefils include salary and wages, bonus
and exgratia The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid m exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as lhe relaled service 1s
rendered by the employees

Post-Employment Benefits

A. Defined Contributions

The Company makes contribulions to statutory provident fund as per the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952 which are defined contribution
plans as per Ind AS 18, Employee benefits The Company recogrused ¥ 8 25 Lakhs (net of fransfer to inlangible asset under development of 7 44 40 Lakhs) (315t March 2024
T 806 Lakhs net of lransfer to intangible asset under development of ¥ 42 91 Lakhs) for prowdent fund conlnbutions i (he Slalement of Proit and Loss The conlnbulions
payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in Ihe rules of he schemes

B, Defined Benefit Plans

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme s a defined benefit plan The Company’s net obhgalion in respecl of a defined benefil plan is calculaled by estimatng he amounl of
fulure benefil lhal employees have earned and returned for services in ihe current and prior periods; that benefit 15 disgounted to deterrnine its present valug The calculation of
Company's obligation under the plan is performed pericdically by an independent qualified acluary using the projected unit credit methaod

The gratuity plan i1s governed by the provisions of the Payment of Graluty Act, 1972 {as amended from Uime o tme) Employeas are enlitled to all the benefits enlisted under
this acl

Valuations are performed an ceram basic sel of pre-delermined assumplions and olher requlalary ramewoark which may vary overbme Thus, the Company 15 exposed to
various risks in providing the above benefil which are as follows

a Interest Rate Risk

The plan exposes the Company to 1he rnisk of fall in inlerest rates A fall in interest rales will result in an increase in the ultimale cost of providing the above benefil and will thus
resull n an ncrease in the value of the hability as shown in financial statements

b. Liquidity Risk

This is lhe risk that lhe Company is nol able to meel the short-lerm gratuty payouls This may anse due to non avallabity of enough cashf cash equivalents lo meet the
habilibes or holchng of hguid assets not being sold in time

¢ Salary Escalation Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculaled with the assumplion of salary ncrease rate of employees in future Dewation in the rale of inlerest in (ulure for
employees from he rate of Increase in salary used to detarmine the present value of obligation will have a beanng on {he plan's rability

d. Demographic Risk

The Company has used cerlain merlahty and attation assumplions in valuation of the hability The Company 1s exposed to the nisk of actual experience turning oul lo be worse
compared t¢ the assumplion

€. Regulatory Risk
Graiuity benefits are paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972 (as amended {rom time lo Ume)} There 15 a risk of change in regulatons
requinng higher graluty pay-outs

f. Asset Liabllity Mismatching or Market Risk

The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the company lo marke! nsk for volathlies/fall in interest rate
q. Investment Risk

The probability or likelihood of eccurrence of losses relative to the expecled relurn on any parbcular (nvestment

Components of Defined Benefit Costs

. Far the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Particulars 31st March 2025 |  31stMarch 2024 |

Amounts Recognised in Comprehensive Income in Respect of these Defined Benefit Plans are as follows :

Current Service Cost 53.96 43 46
Net Inlerest Cost 1307 387
Less Transferred to Inlangibles for Development {B0.27| |
Components of Defined Benefit Costs Recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 16.76 53131

Re-measurement on the Net Defined Beneflt Liability :

Far ihe Year Ended | For the Year Ended

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
#ctuanal Gains and Losses ansing from Change in Financial, Dernographic Adjusiments 938 541
Actuanal SGains ang Losses arising from Change In Experignce Adjustments 1537 13 58
Components of Defined Benefit Costs Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 24,73 1899
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28, Emslayas Benefita (Cantd)|

Particulars — W U

31at March 2025 315t March 2024
Current Porlion of above Asset/(Liability) 2812 2158
Non-Current Portion of above Asset/(Liability} 215 47 162 BS
Change in Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) During the Year :
Fresenl value of DBO at the Begnning of the Year 1684 40 132 49
Current Service Cosl 53 98 4346
Interesl Cost 13.07 867
Past service cost -
Benefils Seltled (32 57) (20 21)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due lo Financial Assumptions, Demographic Adjustments 8 36 541
Bctuarial (Gain) / Loss due 1o Expenence Adjusiments 1537 13 58
Present Valug of DBO at the End of the Year 243.59 164.40
Acluarial Assumptions :
Discounl Rate 6 57% 7 08%
Salary Escalalion 8 00% 8 00%
AH T 10 00% 10 00%
Haliterant Aye 58 vanmE 5-:;_'@3‘:"5:]

Note:

The assumplions were developed by managemenl wath lhe assislance of independent acluanes Dhiscounl faclors are determined close to each year-end by reference lo
markel yields of government bonds thal have lerms lo maturity approximating to lhe terms of the graluity obligation Other assurmplions are based on currenl actuarial

benchmarks and managemenl s hislorical expenence

A Guantitative Senathaty Analysis for Significant Assumptice is as shown below |

i As at As al

Particylars 31st March 2025 |  31st March 2024
Impact ¢f Change in the Discount Rate
Impact Due to Increase of 1% {17 4Q) {12 20)
Impact Due {0 Decrease of 1% 2017 14 14
Impact of Change in the Salary Growth Rate
Impact Due to Increase ol 1% 19 69 13 88
Impacl Due to Decrease of 1% {17 33} {12 21}
Impact of Change in the Attrilion Rate
Impacl Due lo Increase of 1% {178) {088
Impact Due lo Decrease of 1% 2M 098

The sensilivity analysis presenteg above may not be represenlative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as il 18 unlikely thal the change in assumplions would

occur in iselation of one another as some of the assumgtions may be correlaled
Therg is no change in the method of valuation for the prior periods

Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows

The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity 1o the employees Every year. the insurance company carnes out a funding valuation based
on the latest employee data provided by the Company Any deficit in the assets arising as & result of such valuation s funded by the Corapany The weighted average duration
of the plan 15 estimaled lo be 10 years Following 1s a maturity profile of the deflined benefit obhigation;

Expected Cash Flows over the Next Yeara: (Valued on Undlacgunted Baala)

Panticukirs Arnount
1 Yo JEET
J1-5'Yparg 1654 &0
R T 25T
L1803
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29. Fair Value Measurements

(i) Fimancial Instruments by Category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31st March 2025 were as follows

Particulars Notes Amortised Financial Financial
cost assets/liabilities assets/liabilities at
at FVTPL FVOCI
Asspts:
I'rade Receivables 6 154 17 .
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 3865 -
Other Financial Assets 4and 8 20972 -
Total 402 .54 " -
Liabilities:
Tramz Payables 14 296 97 - -
Borrowings 13 7,335 00
Qther Financial Liabilities 142 280 53
Total 7.912 50 . -
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by calegories as of 31st March 2024 were as follows
Particulars Notes Amortised Financial Financial
cost assets/liabilities assets/lizbilities at
at FVTPL FVOCI
Assets:
Trade Recewables & 513
Cash and Cash equivalents 7 140 47
Other Financial Azsets 4 and 8 137 61 #
Tatal 329.29 - -
Liabilities:
Trade Payables 14 581 38
Borrowings 13 3,267 00 s s
Other Financial Liabilities 143 222 00
Total 4,080.38 : .
A T
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29. Fair Value Measurements {Cont'd)

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, other financial assets, Irade payables, working
capital loans and other financial liabilities approximate the carrying amount largely due to short-term maturity of this instruments

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at ihe amount al which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale

{ii) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

The management assessed that for amertised cost instruments, fair value approximate largely to ihe carrying amount

(iif) Fair Value Hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at far value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value
hierarchy The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows

Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments
Level 2: the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use
of observable market daia rely as Iitle as possible on entity specific estimates

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs 1s not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3

{iv) Valuation Technique used to Determine Fair Value

Specific valuation techniques used to vaiue financial instruments include:
- the fair value of quoted invesimenis is delermined using the markel value for the investment The far value estimates are included in level 1

=
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30. Financial Risk Management

The Company's aclivities expose it to a vanety of financial risks: market risk, credit nsk and liquidity risk The Company's focus 1s to foresee the
unpredictability of linancial markets and seek to minimize poientizl adverse effects on it's financial performance

The Company's risk management activity focuses on actively securing lhe Company’s short to medium-lerm cash flows by minimising the exposure
to volatile financial markets Long-lerm financial investments are managed to generale lasting returns

The Company does not actively engage in lhe Irading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does il write options The most significant
financial risks lo which the Company is exposed are described below

{A) Credit Risk Analysis

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company, resulting in a financial loss The Company 1s exposed to
this risk for various financial instruments The Company’s maximum exposure {o credit risk is limited to the carrying amouni of financial assets, as
summarised below:

Assets Under Credit Risk As at Ag at
31st March 2025 J1st March 2024
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3865 140 47
Trade Receivables 154 17 51 31
Otlher Financial Assets 20972 137 .61
402.54 329.39

A1 Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers primarily located in India Credit risk has always
been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit imits and centinuously monitoring |he creditworthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credil terms in lhe normal course of business The Company is exposed to a concentration of customer risk with respecl
to its trade receivable balances On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company uses expected credit loss model to
assess lhe impairment loss or gain The provision for expected credit loss takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors and

Company's historical experience for customers

. As at As at
R 31stMarch 2025 | 31st March 2024
Balance at the Beginning 267 38 11508
Impaiment Loss Recognised 1277 152 30
Impaimment Loss Reversed .
Balance at the End 280.15 267.38

A2 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality exdernal credil

ratings

Financial Assets that are Neither Past due nor Impaired

Cash and cash equivalents, advances to employees, security deposit and other financial assels are neither past due nor impaired

Financial Assets that are Past Due but not Impaired
There is no other class of linancial assets that is past due but not impaired
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30. Financial Risk Management (Cont'd)

{B) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk 1s that the Company might be unable to meet its cbhigations The Company manages its liquidity needs by monitoring scheduled debt
servicing payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day-to-day business The data used for
analysing these cash flows is consistent with that used in the conlraclual matunity analysis below Liguidity needs are monitered in various lime
bands, usually on a menth on rmonth basis Leng-term liquidity needs for a 360-day lockout period are identified monthly Net cash requirements are
compared to available borrowing facilities in erder to determine headroom or any shorifalls. This analysis shows that available borrowing facilities
are expecled to be sufficient over the lookout pericd

The Company's objective is to maintain cash and marketable securilies to meet its liquidity requiremenis for 30-day periods at a minimum  This
objective was met for the reperting periods. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to sell lcng-term financial assets

The Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities have contractual matunties {including interesl payments where applicable) as summarised below:

Maturities of Financial Liabilities

As at 31st March 2025 Less than 1 year | 1yearto S years | More than 5 years Total

Trade Payables 296 97 296 97
Borrowings 4,070 00 3,265 7,335 00
Olher financial Liabilities 280 53 - 280.53
Total 4,647.50 3,265 . 7.912.50
As at 31st March 2024 Less than 1 year | 1vearto5 years | More than § years Total

Trade Payable 59138 - - 59138
Borrowings 3,267 00 - - 3,267 Q0
Other Financial Liabililies 22200 - 22200
Total 4,080.38 - . 4,080.38

{C) Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specificaily to currency risk and interest rate risk, which result
from both its operating and investing actvities

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company does not hold any denvative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in
exchange rates on foreign currency exposures

Interest Rate Risk

Liabilities

The Company's borrowings are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate borrowings They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined
in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates

Assets
The Company's fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined
in Ind A5 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will flucluale because of a change in markel interest rates

Price Risk

Exposura

The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified in the Balance Sheet either at fair value through other
comprehensive income or al fair value through profit and loss To manage the price nisk ansing from investments, the Company diversifies ils
portfolioc of assets
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M, Ratio Analysis

Sr. No. |Particulars 2024-25 2023-24| Variance {%}ﬁ
1 Curmenl Ratio 013 014 -10%
2 Retum on Eguity Ralio ~ -0 76% 077% -198%
3 Trade Receivables Turnover Ralio® 1505 10 16 48%
4 Trade Payables Turnover Ratic& 4,33 iq 27%
& Net Gapilal Turnover Ralio -037 -0.38 4%
[ Net Profil Ratic % -005 006 -190%
7 Debt-Equity Ralio! 071 031 130%
a Return on Capital Employed {Excluding Working Capilal -392% 100% -492%

Financing) #
g Return on Invesimenl@ 0 09% [} 00%! 100%
10 |Debl Service Coverage Ralio" 001 018 -94%

~ Relurn on Equity has decreased due to (058 in lhe currenl year {increase in expense towards Consultancy Translation and Mitaan Contract expenses)
A Trade Receivables tumover ralio higher due 1o higher billling dong dunng the year end

& Trade Payables turnover ratio higher due to Increase in lhe expanses and decrease in lhe ofs lrade payables as on 31sl Mar 2025

% Mel Profit Ralio % decreased pnmanly dug Lo increase in expenses lowards Consullancy Translalion and Mitaan Cantracl expenses

1 Debl-Equity Ratio is increased due to availmenl of additional borrowing during the year and decrease in equity because of Loss duning the year

H Relurn on capilal employed is decreased due Lo increase in average capilal emplayed for the year{} e , increase in borrowings and IAUD in F Y 2024-
" Debl Service coverage Ralio has decreased as there s an merease in the culstanding borrowing and decrease in prafil for FY 2024-25

@ Relurn on Investment has ingreased as there is an investment and sale in mutual fund is done during the year

Formulae for compuotation of ratios are as follows:

1 Current Ratio Currenl Assels

Current Liabilities

L

Retum on Equity Ratic Profil After Tax {Atlribulable to Cwners)
Average Net Worth

-] Trade Receivables Turnover Rauo Yalue of Sales & Services
Average Trade Receivables

a4 Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Olner Expenses before capriaisation
Average Trade Payables

.7 Net Capital Turnover Ratic Value of Sales & Sevices
Working Capital
B Net Prolit Ratio Profil After Tax

Value of Sales & Services

I |Debt-Egurty Rato Torad Dabr
Tolal Equity
8 Return on Capital Employed {Excluding Working Capilal Net Profit After Tax + Deferred Tax Expensef{income| +Finangs Cakd o Ofer Feome,
Financing) Average Capital Employed
8 Return on Invesiment Other Income {Excluding Dividend}

Average Cash, Cash Equivalenis & Other Markelable Secunties

14 Debt Service Coverage Ratio Euirings mepitpgay tor Deht Service
Debt Service




Reverie Language Technologies Limited

CIN: U74800GJ2009PLC157721

Notes Forming part of Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

32. Other Statutory Information

1}
iy

il

iv}

v)

As per seclion 248 of the Companies Act, 2013, there are no balances outstanding with struck off companies
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invesled funds to any olher person(s) or enlily{ies), including loreign entities {Inlermediaries) wilh the
understanding lhal lhe Intermediary shall

{(a) Directly or indirectly lend or inves! in other persons or eniities ideniified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

{b) Provide any guaraniee, security or ihe like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has nel received any fund from any person{s} or enlily({ies), including foreign enlities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether
recorded in wriling or olherwise) thal lhe Company shall

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parly (Ulimale
Beneficiaries) or
{b} Provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of ihe Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company does nol have any such transaction which is nel recorded in the books of accounls thal has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in lhe lax assessments under lhe Income-lax Acl, 1961

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property

33. Details of Loan Given, Investments Made and Guarantee Given Covered WS 186 {4) of The Companies Act, 2013

No investmenls are made, no loans and guarantees are given by lhe Company as at 31st March, 2025 (Previous year NIL)

34.a. Audit Trail

The Gompany, has used accounling schwares for mainlaimng ils books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025 which have a fealure of recording audil lrail {edil log)
facility and {he same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, in respect of an accounting software, the audit trail
fealure was not enabled for the period from April 01 2024 to April 30, 2024 The Company upgraded its software on May 01, 2024 to a new version which has the audil trail
feature and the same has operated from May 01, 2024 Lhroughoul the remaming penod for all relevant transactions recorded in the software

24.b. Backup

The Companies (Amendmenls) Rules 2022 mandale manikenance of backup of company's books of accounl mainiained in elecironic mode on servers physically located in
India on a daily basis with effect from 11lh August 2022 The Company has mainlainled backup for the financial year, however (ne evidence of daily back-up being taken by the
Company is nel readily available in respect of one accounting software for lhe period Irom January 01, 2025 1o March 31 2025 due lo non-availabilty of third-party software
service provider's audilor's reporl regarding the backup of books of account The managemeni is of lhe view that this does not have any impacl on ils financials statements for
lhe year ended March 31, 2029




Reverie Language Technologies Limited

CIN: U74900GJ2009PLC157721

Notes Forming part of Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
All Amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

35.a, Going Concern
The Company has cash and cash equivalenls of ¥ 38 65 lakbs as al March 31, 2025 The curren! liabihlies exceed the currenl assels by 7 4,161 45 lakhs as al March 31, 2025
{March 31, 2024 - ¥ 3,630 97 lzkhs) The accumulated losses of the Company as at March 31, 2025 is ¥ 8,983 91 lakhs (March 31, 2024 -3 6,860 lakhs)

The Financial statemenls have been drawn on a going concern basis In view of the finanmal supporl available from Jio Platforms Limiteg, the Parent Company, which has
confirmed continued financial support in lhe form of letter of comforl/undertaking 1o any bank/ffinancial inslitution or any other agency wilh respect lo lean/financial
assislanceffacities availed/lo be avalled by the Company Hence, the Company believes that this will enable it to continue its operations and settle its obligations as and when
they become due over lhe next twelve-month perod These financial statements, therefore, do nol include any adjusimenls relaling o recoverability and classificalion of
recorded asset amounts or to amounts and classification of liabilities Ihal may be necessary il lhe Company was unable ko continuz as a going concern

35.b. Intangible Asset under Development
Reverie's Language-as-a-Service {LaaS) cloud platform helps businesses and end users go mullingual by providing localizalon of lexdbased apps and websiles By
integrating, the LaaS cloud platform with any business infrastructure, lhe Company provide millions of potenlial users wiln a greal locallanguage experience As per lhe
provisions of Ind AS-38 on Intangible Assets, the Company has recognised an amounl of 2 17 849 64 Lakhs { 31st March 2024 - ¥ 14 082 94 Lakhs) which represents lhe
intangible asset under developmenl comprising of (8) direcl expenses such as employse benefils, professional charges, server expenses elc and such other services direclly
used for developing the inlended intangible assets, (b) indirecl expenses such as depreciation, inleresl and such other expenses directly attnbutable to developing Ihe inlangible
assals for its intended use;

The Company does its impairment evaluation on an annual basis and based on such evalualion as al 31st March 2025, {he eslimated recoverable amounl of the Cash
Generating Unit {CGU) exceaded its carrying amount For the purpose of impairment (esling, inlangible assets under developmenl are allocaled to the CGU which benefits from
the intangible asset For the purpose of imparent tesling, ihe Company as a whole 15 considered as CGU

The recoverable amount of the above CGU has been determined based on 'value in use' madel, where in lhe value of cash generating unil is determined as a sum of (he net
present value of the projected posl lax cash flows lor a period of 5 years and terminal value The lerminal value of cash generaling unitis arrved ai by extrapolating cash flows
of lztesl forecasted year lo perpeluity using a consiant long-term growth rale

Determination of value in use involves significanl estimates and assumptions that affect the reporing CGU's expected future cash flows The Company has performed
sensiivity analysis for all key assumptions and concluded thal it 1s unhkely to cause the carrying amount of lhe CGU exceed iIs estmated recoverable amounl The key
assumptions used for the calculalions were as follows

Particulars As at As at

March 3, 2025 March 31, 2024 |
Discounl rate 15 00% 15 00% [
Long-term growih rate 500% 5 00% 1}

36. Previous Year Comparatives
Prior year amounls have been regroupedirearranged wherever necessary, to conform to the currenl year's presentabion

37 Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved by lhe Board of Directors on 22 April 2025
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